
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY-THIRD SESSION 

Of!icwl Record$ • 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 28th MEETING 

Chairman : Mr. BOLINTINEANU (Romania) 

CONTENTS 

SIXTH COMMITTEE . 
28th meeting 

held on 
Monday, 23 October 1978 

at 3 p.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 117 : REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON THE CHARTER OF THE UNITED NATIONS 
AND ON THE STRENGTHENING OF THE ROLE OF THE ORGANIZATION {continued} 

• This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of 
Ll-,e record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

78-57795 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.6/33/SR.28 
26 October 1978 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: Fm2lCH 

I ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
Enclish 
Pc.r;e 2 

The meeting was called to order at 3.25 p.m. 

AGEIJDA ITEJ.1 117: REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON THE CHARTER OF THE UNITED 
!JATIOHS .fu'JD ON THE STRENGTHENING OF THE ROLE OF THE ORGANIZATION (continued) 
(A/33/33, A/33/65, A/33/206 and Corr.l (French only)) 

l. l·ir. EL ARABY (Egypt) said the efforts to render the Organization more 
effective should be aimed at making it a centre for harmonizing the various 
aspects of the actions of Member States, as provided in Article l of the Charter. 
There Has no doubt that certain concepts and mechanisms needed reshaping, but a 
balance had to be maintained between the desire for renovation and the need to 
preserve the continuity of the Organization. Above all, it was necessary as a 
first step to find a Hay of ensuring that the decisions taken by the competent 
United Nations organs Here implemented. It was common knowledge that the 
Orcrrnization's prestige had been dealt a serious blow in recent years by the scorn 
•·ri th which certain countries treated its resolutions and by the failure to respect 
so:ne of the principles embodied in the Charter. His delegation, like others, felt 
that the Special Committee should give priority to the question of the 
implementation of the Organization 1 s resolutions -particularly those of the 
Security Council - in order that the Organization might have the authority it 
needed to Hork for the establishment of peace and security throughout the world. 
To that end, the States concerned, and especially the big Powers which were 
permanent members of the Security Council, must demonstrate the necessary political 
1-rill. 

2. General Assembly resolutions were certainly not binding, but they derived from 
the combined will of the members of the international community and could be 
considered one of the sources of international law. In practice, those resolutions 
spontaneously acquired a customary character, as in the case of the famous General 
A;senbly resolution 1514 (XV), better knoYTD as the Declaration on the Granting of 
IndePendence to Colonial Countries and Peoples. The provisions of that resolution, 
i·rhich had been reproduced year after year in subsequent General Assembly 
resolutions, had led in practice to the condemnation of colonialism, the 
prohibition of the acquisition of territories by force, the recognition of the 
~i~ht of peoples to liberate their countries and the legitimization of national 
li~eration movements as the representatives of peoples still subject to colonial 
domination, racism or military occupation. In the more than 30 years which had 
elapsed since the establishment of the United Nations, major scientific and 
technological developments had occurred in the world which had naturally affected 
the activities of the Organization, whose methods of work must be reviewed. A 
special committee established for that purpose had prepared a long report which 
had unfortunately, had little impact. His delegation believed that in order to 
mak~ progress it was necessary to begin by tackling the question from a practical 
angle: it hoped that the technical se~vic~s of the Secretar~at would submi~ 
speci:ic proposals in that regard, tak1ng 1nto account the v1ews expressed 1n the 
Sixth Committee, so that the latter could study the question in a more thorough 
and detailed manner. 

I ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. El Araby, Egypt) 

3. His delegation attached considerable importance to the principle of the 
peaceful settlement of disputes, as embodied in Articles 1, 2 and 33 of the 
Cha~ter, which must be applied eQuitably as provided by international law and as 
deslred by all peoples dedicated to peace and justice. Egypt had made that 
principle one of the bases of its foreign policy and was se~king by every means 
in its power to implement and strengthen it. 

4. Egypt considered that the Special Committee should continue its work - in 
which it played an active part -with a view to attaining all its objectives. In 
the immediate future, however, the Special Committee should redouble its efforts 
to complete at least part of its mandate and formulate recommendations on certain 
non-controversial subjects on which a consensus was emerging, with a view to 
submitting them to the General Assembly at its next session. 

5. Mr. GNAHOUI-DAVID (Benin) said the QUestion of the revision of the Charter of 
the United Nations and the strengthening of the role of the Organization, 
especially with regard to the maintenance of international peace and security, was 
one of the most important items to be considered by the Sixth Committee. 

6. At the time of its establishment in 1945, the United Nations had had about 
50 Members; after 33 years of existence, it currently had 150. Far-reaching changes 
had taken place in the international political scene and the Charter no longer 
reflected current reality or responded properly to the many concerns of the 
Organization. The structure of United Nations organs, particularly the Security 
Council, had remained virtually unchanged, and furthermore those organs were 
manipulated by the imperialist Powers which opposed the will of the progressive 
countries of the world. The veto was abused to the detriment of the interests of 
the progressive forces of Africa, Asia and Latin America, thus jeopardizing 
international peace and security. Yet the maintenance of peace was precisely one 
of the primary purposes of the United Nations. In order to avoid abusive recourse 
to the veto, Security Council decisions were watered down and as a result the 
Council refrained from pronouncing condemnations which were nevertheless justified. 
The Security Council thus became completely ineffective as soon as its decisions 
served only the selfish interests of certain permanent members; his delegation 
denounced that reactionary and fundamentally conservative policy. 

7. The imperialist Powers were using many delaying tactics in the Special 
Committee in order to prevent it from fulfilling its mandate properly. But it was 
essential that the Special Committee should be able to submit for the . 
consideration of the Sixth Committee concrete proposals which constituted a genulne 
response to the concerns of the international community. The revision of the 
Charter and the elimination of the veto would be in harmony with historical trends. 
Such a revision was necessary if the role of the Organization was to be strengt~ened 
so that it might more efficiently maintain international peace and sec~rity, whlch 
were prereQuisites for the development of co-operation among all nations and for 
the elaboration of rules of international law which facilitated relations between 
States. 

I ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 4 

8. Mr. KHLESTOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that~ in order to 
fulfil the mandate given it by the General Assembly, the Special Committee on the 
Charter of the United Nations and on the Strengthening of the Role of the 
Organization had begun by defining the topics to which the proposals submitted to 
it related~ namely the peaceful settlement of disputes, the rationalization of the 
existing procedures of the Organization and the maintenance of peace and security. 
It had drawn up, on a strictly preliminary basis, a list of proposals relating to 
the first topic; it had considered a number of proposals relating to the second 

. topic, but had not drawn up a list of them; and it had thus far received only two 
proposals relating to the third topic, and had not had time to discuss them. 

9. All States 5 his own among them, agreed that the task of the Special Committee 
was primarily to make the United Nations more effective so that it would be better 
able to apply the principles embodied in the Charter, but not all States were in 
a~reement on the means to be used to attain that end. A few delegations 
considered that the Charter should be amended, but many others, particularly his 
own, felt that the failure of the United Nations to solve certain problems 
effectively resulted, not from the Charter or from the structure of its organs, 
but rather from the lack of political will on the part of certain States or groups 
of States which prevented the Organization from taking effective measures. The 
importance of the political will of States became clear in the light of the role 
which it played in other international organizations, such as the Organization of 
African Unity; despite its Charter and structure, which seemed perfectly 
appropriate, OAU was unable to settle a great many controversial questions. 

10. Amending the Charter would simply weaken the United Nations rather than 
making it more effective. His delegation considered that the Charter was an 
adaptable and flexible instrument which guaranteed the implementation of all the 
measures necessary for the maintenance of peace and the development of co-operation 
among States. Moreover, the Charter was one of the bases of contemporary 
international law; it had promoted its progressive development and had contributed 
to the refinement of its rules. The potential of the Charter should be used to the 
full. His delegation, like many others, considered that it was both necessary and 
possible to improve certain aspects of the Organization 1 s activities and in 
particular to rationalize its procedures so that the agenda of the General Assembly 
was not overloaded •rith questions of secondary importance and its decisions were 
respected, to avoid the establishment of useless bodies entailing additional 
expenditure and to increase the effectiveness of peaceful means of settling 
disputes. However, it must be remembered that the Charter could not be held 
responsible for the Organization's failure to solve certain problems, such as the 
elimination of the racist regimes in southern Africa. 

11. The Committee had only just started its work and had not yet begun detailed 
consideration of the proposals made concerning the identification of priority 
topics. Some held the view that the Committee's mandate should not be extendedj 
because of the complexity of the task before it, the practical results achieved 
might not justify the expenditure of resources and energies. However, if a majority 
of delegations was in favour of renewing the Committee's mandate as defined in 
resolution 32/45, his delegation w·ould be willing to agree to it, in spite of 
certain misgivings it entertained. 

I . .. 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Khlestov, USSR) 

12. With regard to the organization of the Committee's work~ he noted from the 
report that the Committee, at the proposal of the representative of Mexico, had 
decided to consider topics in the following order: the question of the peaceful 
settlement of disputes~ on which ll countries had submitted working papers; the 
rationalization of existing procedures, on which 7 countries had submitted working 
papers, and the maintenance of international peace and security, on which only 
2 countries had submitted working papers. There was no good reason for changing 
that order, established by the Special Committee under its terms of reference, 
which his delegation did not wish to see modified. 

13. His delegation shared the view of many members of the Committee that the 
latter should try to draw up proposals that would make the functioning of the 
United Nations more efficient, without any necessity for amending the Charter. 
Moreover, since the members of the Special Committee represented entire regions, 
the Committee must try as far as possible to reach a general understanding on the 
proposals submitted, Besides, the nature of the questions considered meant that 
the Special Committee, and also the Sixth Committee, should work on the basis of 
a consensus. 

14. Mr. ROMULO (Philippines) considered that the Special Committee had made real 
progress in its~work during the past year. He was also pleased to note that there 
had been constructive and imaginative participation by nearly all the major Powers. 
The report on the reform and restructuring of the United Nations system submitted 
to the United States Congress by President Carter contained many interesting views, 
some of which had already found their way into the Sixth Committee. That document 
demonstrated the interest taken by major Powers in the United Nations. 

15. His delegation particularly welcomed the Special Committee's choice of the 
topic of peaceful settlement of disputes for priority consideration. It was 
important to improve the capacity of the world Organization to achieve just 
solutions in the interests of all, Global interdependence was growing, and brought 
frictions in its wake, and therefore the stake in the commitment to the resolution 
of disputes by peaceful means was all the higher. It was his delegation's 
conviction that that was a major task of the United Nations, whose responsibilities 
in that respect, were clearly stated in the Charter, as were those of Member States. 

16. The Organization, however, had not yet succeeded in developing modalities to 
assist Members in that area and Members also had not taken as seriously as they 
should their binding obligations to utilize means as outlined in the Charter to 
settle their differences. There was thus a need for some standing United Nations 
instrumentality to assist Members, and also a need to provide incentives for 
Members voluntarily to pursue appropriate means of settling disputes. States 
should be required to accept obligatory modes of settlement if they fail to 
resolve their differences by negotiation or other bilateral means. The list of 
51 proposals appearing in the Special Committee's report (A/33/33) contained 
suggestions of definite value. It would be useful, for instance, to study why 
States did not make greater use of machinery for peaceful settlement of disputes. 

I ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 6 
(Mr. Romulo, Philippines) 

The idea of elaborating guidelines or a declaration, and preparing a manual 
describing procedures and available facilities, was also useful. There was no 
reason why the means for settlement of disputes which were regularly applied 
domestically should not be applied at the international level. His delegation was 
quite ready to support, among the 51 proposals, those suggestions to the effect 
that Member States not directly involved in a dispute should take the initiative 
to encourage the parties to utilize the methods indicated in Article 33 of the 
Charter or, more important still, should themselves bring the matter to the 
attention of the Security Council. Greater use by the Security Council of informal 
consultations should be considered, and there should also be more frequent recourse 
to the International Court of Justice. However his delegation did not generally 
believe that it would be helpful to include a new item on the General Assembly's 
agenda concerning the peaceful settlement of disputes. 

17. In his opinion the Security Council should ensure that Article 33 of the 
Charter was more frequently applied and the Secretary-General should make more 
effective use of Article 99 in taking the initiative to alert the Security Council 
to situations vrhich threatened international peace and security. More frequent 
use should be made of observers and fact-finding missions. The institution of 
regional machinery was another important concept, especially as disputes frequently 
had a uniquely regional character. 

18. Lastly, a number of suggestions implied new levels of commitment by States to 
the settlement of disputes by peaceful means and to acceptance of assistance when 
needed. Although there was still considerable reluctance, Member States would 
understand that that was the course which the world community must follow, 
particularly in view of the nuclear threat hanging over it. His delegation 
therefore would give favourable consideration to the promulgation of a treaty on 
the peaceful settlement of disputes which would elaborate on the generalized 
principles already contained in the Charter. Similarly, consideration should be 
given, as already recommended earlier (A/9739, p. 15), to the establishment of 
nevr standing machinery, such as a standing conciliation and arbitration commission 
to which intractable disputes would be referred after a reasonable period of time, 
and to which parties to a dispute would have access at any time. It was true that 
the Security Council could establish ad hoc bodies for those purposes, but in 
practice it had rarely done so. The existence of a permanent body would encourage 
countries to take advantage of the assistance thus made available to them for the 
settlement of difficult disputes. His delegation believed that such a standing 
body would fall under the Charter responsibilities of the Security Council and 
should be related to it. 

19. Among the suggestions put forward his delegation also noted the proposal for 
recourse to the "good officesn procedure. It had already been mentioned in 
document A/9739 that development of orderly procedures for moving sequentially from 
two-party negotiations to the level of third-party involvement in disputes.wa~ 
essential. That was the only course open to the world community. That pr2nc2ple 
which was a normal process in national societies should also be applied 
internationally for the benefit of the community as a whole. Initially, States 

/ ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 7 

(Mr. Romulo, Philippines) 

might wish to designate certain types of disputes in which they vlere willing to be 
bound by decisions reached through third-party assistance. That new approach 
would only be achieved by degrees but a beginning must be made because the peaceful 
settlement of disputes was a least developed aspect of the United Nations and was 
too important to neglect. 

20. It was clear that the Committee, which was at the preliminary stage of its 
worl~, would need a considerable period of time to study the item. However, the 
Committee need not accord such high priority to the question of rationalization of 
the procedures of the General Assembly since the Assembly, at its twenty-sixth 
session, had completed a very exhaustive examination of that very question, on 
which a number of recommendations had been made - as could be seen from the report 
of the Special Committee on the Rationalization of the Procedures and Organization 
of the General Assembly (A/8426) for 1971 - which had yet to be implemented. On 
the other hand the Committee, as soon as it had identified proposals of general 
interest in the field of peaceful settlement of disputes, should immediately turn 
its attention to the question of the maintenance of international peace and 
security. 

21. As for the question of reviewing the Charter, concerning which some tension 
still existed in the Sixth Committee, he thought that the question had been wrongly 
phrased. The question was not 11Does the Charter need amending? 11

, but what needed 
to be done in a topic area in order to bring the United Nations up to the required 
level of effective functioning. Then it would be necessary to determine whether 
the Charter needed amending. In most cases no changes in the Charter would be 
required but it would be irrational to rule out any possibility of revision 
automatically. Amendments to the Charter had already been accepted by all the 
permanent members of the Security Council 9 who had not found any insurmountable 
obstacles to amendment. The spurious question regarding the amendment of the 
Charter should be laid to rest and not alloweJ to obstruct the effective vmrk 
proceeding in the Special Committee, which was also gaining recognition in other 
United Nations committees and fora. The results of the Committee's deliberations 
might be of great historic importance, because there was seldom an opportunity to 
design more effective and suitable global institutions. The opportunity was now 
to hand, and the Special Committee had been given the task. 

22. In conclusion, he emphasized that the Charter could not be regarded as 
obsolete. It was a living organ which must develop. Inertia was just as 
dangerous as disruption. He was therefore in favour of reviewing it, provided that 
every effort was made to ensure that only necessary changes were made. 

23. Mr. MANYANG D'AWOL (Sudan) said his delegation attached great importance to the 
vrork of the Special Committee. He stressed that the main task for which it had been 
established -vms the revision of the Charter of the United Nations. The necessity 
for such a revision had been considered lvhen the Organization was founded in 1945, 
because the founders had foreseen the progressive evolution of the world and the 
continuing increase in membership which would inevitably add a new spirit to the 
Organization. Since then opinions on that point had remained divided. 

/ ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Pa~e 8 

(Mr. Manyang D' Avrol, Sudan) 

24. The oft-repeated argument that the Charter had stood the test of time vms 
unacceptable, given that the necessity of revie•ving it had been considered a mere 
eight years after it came into existence. During the 33 years of its existence 
the Charter had undeniably contributed to the realization of major achievements, 
but it was inconceivable that it should therefore be left unchanged. In 1953, 
when the issue had been raised before the General Assembly, the British Foreign 
Secretary had stated that he failed to understand the extreme nervousness shmm by 
some delegations at any revision. He himself was therefore surprised at certain 
changes of position. On the other hand, he agreed with the rep~esentative of the 
United States that that country had been one of the first advocates of revision. 
In 1953 the United States Secretary of State had declared that it was a matter of 
good faith towards the smaller States to convene a reviewing conference. As one 
of the smaller States, the Sudan was grateful for those words, but felt that the 
time had come for positive action. It was time for the 11smaller States" and the 
first advocates of Charter revision to unify their efforts to that end, in order 
to infuse a new spirit into the United Nations so that it would be capable of 
coping effectively w·ith the realities of the modern -vrorld. 

25. With reference to the report of the Special Committee and its future work, 
his delegation was aware that it would take time to complete the task, but would 
have preferred the Committee to start on the right track. It should have begun 
with the issues vhich w·ere of major importance and directly related to Charter 
revlslon. In particular, it should have dealt with the question of the maintenance 
of international peace and security on a priority basis. Although the matter of 
the peaceful settlement of disputes 1vas also extremely important, it should not 
have taken priority in the vrork of the Special Committee, since it could be dealt 
with in other forums or committees. 

26. His delegation vrould support any suggestion aimed at making the International 
Court of Justice function more effectively and therefore supported the idea of 
expanding the Court's jurisdiction in the hope that countries would refer more of 
their disputes to it. Lastly, his delegation would like to see the Special 
Committee 1 s mandate extended. 

27. Mr. KOSTOV (Bulgaria) expressed his delegation's appreciation to !Jr. Broms 
for the very able vray in 1v-hich he had chaired the complicated work of the Special 
Committee and for his lucid introductory statement. The fact that the report 
reflected a broad range of views was not surprising, since there was a fundamental 
difference of opinion on many of the subjects -vrhich fell within the Special 
Committee's mandate. Although it 1-ras difficult to say that the Special Committee 
had made real progress, it had managed to restore the spirit of co-operation -.;rhich 
vas vital for the continuation of its work. It was the common desire of opponents 
and proponents of Charter revision to make the Organization function better, to 
make its activity more effective and to protect the interests of all States. 

28. His Government, along \Vi th many others, had never accepted the thesis of 
Charter revision as a means of strengthening the role of the United Nations in 
international relations. The practice of the past three decades had unambiguously 
confirmed that the Charter was the most significant international legal instrument 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/33/SR. 28 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Kostov, Bulgaria) 

adopted since the Second World vlar and was recognized by practically all States 
as the foundation for the contemporary legal order. 

29. The short-comings of the Organization's activities -vrere not due to the Charter 
but derived from the unwillingness of certain States to live up to its principles 
and purposes and to display the necessary political determination to fulfil the 
international obligations they had assumed under the provisions of that unique 
instrument. For that reason suggestions such as those to change the balance of 
powers between the Security Council and the General Assembly, to alter the division 
of their functions, and to abolish the principle of unanimity of the permanent 
members of the Security Council, 1vould alter the political and juridical nature, 
and the very essence, of the United nations. It was illusory to expect members of 
the Special Committee to find common ground on the basis of such suggestions. 

30. The lesson to be dravrn from the deep crisis the Organization had confronted 
was that vrhenever it 1ms placed at the service of any particular group of States, 
to the detriment of the interests of other groups, it became impossible to achieve 
the noble aims to which Hember States had pledged themselves in good faith. It 
should not be forgotten that the Charter was currently the main source of positive 
international law, and that its basic principles were imperative legal rules as 
interpreted by the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties. 

31. However, the changes that had taken place throughout the world, such as the 
disintegration of the colonial system and the struggle of the peoples for just and 
equitable economic relations, against racial discrimination, in favour of 
strengthening peace and security in the world, and for detente, could not be denied 
and called for a progressive development and perfecting of international lmv. It 
1vas well knovrn that those successes had been made possible by a dynamic 
interpretation of the Charter which had led to the adoption of the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights, the Declaration on the Granting of Independence to 
Colonial Countries and Peoples, the Declaration on Friendly Relations and 
Co-operation among States, the Declaration on Strengthening International Security, 
the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties of States and the Definition of 
Aggression. His Government attached great importance to the conclusion, in the 
same spirit, of a world treaty on the non-use of force. 

32. The report of the Special Committee showed that it was studying those issues 
-vrhich vrould really help to enhance the role of the Organization. In that regard, 
it should eA~lore all avenues leading to the strengthening of detente, the 
maintenance of international peace and security, disarmament, decolonization, the 
elimination of apartheid and racial discrimination, and the promotion of economic 
and social development. It -vras his delegation's submission that the potential 
offered by the United Nations vras far from having been exhausted and the Special 
Committee should find ;;mys to use it fully. 

33. The 1vork of the Special Committee should therefore be continued on the basis 
of its mandate, as formulated in General Assembly resolution 32/45, strictly 
observing the principle of consensus not only on questions of substance, but also 
in important procedural matters. His delegation expressed the hope that the draft 

I . .. 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 10 

(Mr. Kostov, Bulgaria) 

resolution on the item under consideration could be adopted by consensus and that 
it would take into account the consid~rations of all groups of States. 

34. ~~s. MUTUKWA (Zambia) said that, in considerin~ the issue of the Charter and 
the strengthening of the role of the Organization, her delegation took as its 
point of departure the purposes and principles contained in Chapter I of that 
instrument, in particular the first of those purposes, which was the maintenance 
of international peace and security. Her country viewed the United Nations as 
the only possible guarantor of global peace and stability. All nations, -vrithout 
exception, had a vested interest in an effective and viable United Nations. 

35. It was for that reason that her delegation was increasingly disappointed at 
the failure of the Special Committee to deal with the question for Hhich it had 
been established. The successes of the United Nations in respect of, inter alia, 
the creation and maintenance of a world order, decolonization and the emergence of 
many new nations, the observance of human rights, the solution of various 
socio-economic problems, the fostering of greater international co-operation, and 
the development and consolidation of international law did not blind her delegation 
to the Organization's failures in some vital fields, particularly that of peace and 
security. Apartheid, the situation in Namibia, Southern Rhodesia and the Middle 
East, and the 1-ridening gap betueen the rich and poor were problems still crying 
for solutions. 

36. Her delegation believed that some of the failures of the United Nations 
resulted from the fact that the legal order set up in 1945 had been eroded by the 
complex problems of the modern world. The instrument creating that legal order 
should therefore be changed and adapted to the needs of the contemporary vorld. 

37. Her delegation would not discuss the contents of the report of the Special 
Committee ( A/33/33) in detail, as it -vras a member of that Committee; it felt, 
however, that the lack of progress made by the Special Committee in carrying out 
its mandate -vras due to the fact that the original idea for setting up the Special 
Committee, namely to review the Charter, had been lost. The original mandate 
contained in resolution 3499 (XXX) had two complementary and distinct aspects: 
the revie>-r of the Charter and the strengthening of the role of the Organization. 
The first aspect was related to the second, but was important enough to require 
separate treatment. Apparently, the Special Committee had combined the two to 
the detriment of the first aspect. 

38. Her delegation had no doctrinal approach to Charter review. It felt, however, 
that although in some cases the effectiveness of the United Nations could be 
increased without any amendments to the Charter, in some areas, revisions were 
indispensable. Member States should not render the United Nations ineffective by 
catering to the demands of a few who were opposed to the democratization of ~he 
United Nations and its institutions. Too often it vas said that what the Um. ted 
Nations needed was political will on the part of Member States. It was paradoxical 
that the same States which constantly talked about political will flagrantly 
refused to implement the resolutions of the General Assembly and the Security 
Council in the field of peace and security. 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/33/SR. 28 
English 
Page ll 

(Mrs. Mutukwa, Zambia) 

39. Her delegation suggested that in renewing the mandate of the Special 
Committee, the General Assembly should instruct it to deal with the revie1v of the 
Charter and to study the ~uestion of international peace and security at its next 
session on a priority basis. 

40. Mr. CORDOVA (Ecuador) said the 1vork of the Special Committee had not been as 
far-reaching as its members, including his delegation, would have liked. Ecuador 
supported the idea of a General Assembly declaration on the peaceful settlement of 
disputes that could later lead to the preparation of a treaty on that subject. As 
the N"exican delegation had stated, such a declaration should lay special emphasis 
on the obligation to submit all disputes to peaceful settlement procedures, in the 
light of an international instrument setting forth specific procedures and concrete 
measures for that purpose. Ecuador would also favour the establishment of a 
judicial organ to which a party to a dispute could unilaterally address itself, 
without the consent of all interested parties being necessary. It was unrealistic 
to believe that a State which was taking advantage of a situation resulting from an 
unsettled dispute would be prepared to give its consent. He could not see why the 
procedures which governed the relationships between individuals in every single 
country of the world would not be accepted at the international level and why an 
injured State could not resort to judicial action; a State could not invoke the 
principle of sovereignty in the event of injury to another State. 

41. In order to strengthen the role of the Security Council in respect of the 
settlement of disputes, the General Assembly, which represented the conscience of 
mankind, should re~uest the five permanent members of the Council to m1dertake not 
to use the veto - while that illegitimate privilege continued to exist - to thw·art 
Council measures for the peaceful settlement of disputes. The ~uestion of the 
peaceful settlement of disputes should therefore be included in the agenda of the 
thirty-fourth session of the General Assembly, not only because of its intrinsic 
importance, but also because of its connexion, at the political level, with 
disarmament and the new international economic order. In theory and even less in 
practice, it was inconceivable that the prohibition of the use or threat of force 
in international relations and progressive disarmament should not be immediately 
and automatically reinforced by la>v. The unjust economic relationships among 
States were a source of permanent tension which, as the gap between developed and 
developing countries widened, encouraged the arms race and the supply of arms by 
Po1vers contending for markets for purposes of profit. 

42. Such considerations had led Ecuador and the other Latin American signatories 
to the Ayacucho Declaration to reaffirm on 22 June 1978 that the persisting 
international problems were one of the major causes of the arms race and to express 
their willingness to support the settlement of all disputes by peaceful means with 
a vie"r to eliminating tension and strengthening peace. 

43. vJhile it was true that experience had shovm the Charter to be a frameuork 
treaty whose elements had some degree of flexibility, the fact remained that no 
text, however perfect, could remain unaffected by the passage of time and the 
changes in the historical circumstances under >vhich it had been produced. One of 
the vreaknesses of the Charter 1vas the inade~uacy of its economic provisions, which 

I ... 



A/C.6/33/STI. 28 
English 
Page 12 

( .f1r. Cordova, Ecuador) 

had made it impossible to bridee the gap between rich and poor nations. The 
difficulties of revie'.ring the Charter should not lead to a renunciation of efforts 
to adapt it to contemporary needs and the neu· dimensions of international relations 

44. In some areas, however, the strengthening of the role of the Organization did 
not absolutely require amendments to the Charter. In that respect, his delegation 
had already stressed the need not only to strengthen United Nations operational 
activities, but also to enhance the Organization's image in the outside world. 
In particular, it Has essential to improve the educational resources available to 
Member States in creating a better understanding~ especially among the younger 
generation, of the principles, purposes and activities of the United Nations. 
Insufficient emphasis -vras placed in the class-room on the United Nations and there 
were not enough information programmes on the Charter, the principal organs and 
subsidiary organs of the United Nations, the codification and progressive 
development of international law and the opportunities offered by an organization 
which, despite its defects, had become a centre for activities promoting 
development and coexistence. Efforts should therefore be made to disseminate 
information about the United IJations at all levels, f:rom primary schools to 
institutions of higher learning, and the support of public and private institutions 
should be enlisted to that end. As UNESCO advocated, there was a need to lay 
emphasis on orienting education tovrards international co-ordination and 
understanding. 

45. Strenuous efforts should also be made in respect of global public information 
concerning the United Nations. Information should be provided on its activities 
aimed at promoting economic and social development in all countries and on its 
work in the fields of science, commu.11ications and statistics. In that connexion, 
the strengthening of the role of the Organization would go hand in hand with the 
enhancement of its image in the outside w·orld, -vrhere its successes and failures 
would be better appreciated. The United Nations should be critically appraised 
not only in official circles, but also by ordinary people, which vould enable it 
to draw strength from world public opinion. 

46. In that respect, the Office of Public Information should be given greater 
resources to enable it to feed the -vrorld-uide information agencies. It was also 
imperative to strengthen the language services, especially Spanish language 
services, as 1.rell as radio and television activities and those relating to all 
modern information media in general. 

4 7. His delegation felt that the mandate of the Special Committee should be renei-re 
a11d that that body should be expressly requested to make concrete proposals ';.rith 
reference to the major aspects of its mandate. 

48. Mr. SHIANI (Kenya) welcomed the very useful report of the Special Committee 
on the Charter of the United Nations and on the Strengthening of the Role of the 
Organization. He agreed with the Chairman of the Special Committee that a 
discernible change had occurred in the attitude of its members, although he . 
believed that the change mainly reflected their desire to enhance the effect~ veness 
of the Organization through changes in its machinery. He hoped to see more of 

I . .. 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 13 

(Ur. Simani, Kenya) 

that change of attitude 1vhen the Comwittee came to consider the proposals calling 
for a review of the United Hations Charter, in which the majority of Hember States 
were primarily interested. 

49. His delegation had not been able to follmv the vrork of the Special Comwittee 
through to the end of its 1978 session and had thus been urevented from raisin~ 

L 0 

the objections vrhich it 1wuld othenrise have made regarding the method of 1-mrk 
followed by the Special Committee. i'lhereas, for example, the Special Committee 
had in the previous year been assisted by precis->vriters, the Chairman of the 
Horking Group had been obliged to write his report solely on the basis of his own 
notes and those taken by one or two young secretaries, even though the report to 
be submitted by the Special Conmrittee to the General Assembly might suffer thereby. 
Despite its merits, the report was not satisfactory in all respects. 

50. His delegation had been surprised to learn that, although in the previous 
year the annexing to the Special Committee 1s report of a compilation of proposals 
which had awakened particular interest had been put to the vote, at the 1978 
session a compilation of similar proposals had been made and reproduced in the 
report without a vote on the matter. The Committee had been told that that had 
been done because of paragraph 3 of General Assembly resolution 32/45, -vrhereby the 
Assembly requested the Special Committee to be mindful of the importance of 
reaching general agreement whenever it had significance for the outcome of its 
work. His delegation was not convinced as to the usefulness of that definition of 
the Special Committee's method of work and considered that such a provision wight 
be invoked by persons seeking to paralyse its vrork. Consensus was a useful method 
of -vmrk and >vas desirable for ensuring that the interests of all members -vrere taken 
into consideration but it should not be used to stifle the wishes of the majority. 
Moreover, before the introduction of that provision into the Special Committee's 
mandate, the latter had ahrays sought to reach its decisions by consensu._s. 
However, if it 1vas necessary for its method of 1vork to be defined in a resolution 
his delegation suggested a slight amendment to the effect that, 11:1.ile it 1vas 
essential for the Committee to endeavour to work on the basis of consensus, its 
right to resort to the rules of procedure, both on procedural matters and in cases 
of total inability to reach a consensus, should be preserved. 

51. His delegation believed that the Special Committee 1 s mandate should be rene-vred. 
It already had before it several proposals, set forth in documents 
A/AC.l82/L.l2/Rev.l and A/AC.l82/L.l5, which had been submitted at the 1977 
session and which should form the basis for the preparation of the list of 
proposals -v1hich had awakened special interest. There should be no need to repeat 
the same process, as had been the case at the 1978 session. It was desirable that 
the next report should contain recommendations on those proposals so that they 
might be given further consideration. It vas also desirable that at its next 
session the Special Committee should give priority to drawing up a list of 
proposals relating to the maintenance of international peace and security and that 
it should complete its work on the settlement of disputes and on the rationalization 
of procedures. 

52. With regard to substantive issues, his delegation wished briefly to restate 
its position. Although the Charter of the United Nations uas a very carefully 

I . .. 



A/AC.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 14 

(Hr. Simani, Kenya) 

drafted document and had on the whole worl\:ed well, the changes that had taken 
place in the world since the establishment of the Organization made a review of 
the Charter not only desirable but necessary. The provisions relating to the 
pmrer of veto, in particular, should be reviewed; that power should be distributed 
more equitably, so as to reflect the changed situation in the world, and Africa 
too should be given veto POi·rer. The role played by the Security Council in the 
maintenance of peace should also be strengthened. 

53. Hr'. RAJU (India) said that the Charter, just like any other instrument 
intended to regulate conduct vi thin and between nations, 1·ras only an expression 
of the aspirations of the peoples. To remain a living and dynamic instrument it 
must therefore be adjusted to changing situations, perspectives and requirements. 

54. The United Nations had a number of achievements to its credit since its 
establishment. It had succeeded in defusing a number of tensions and warlike 
situations. It had come to the succour of nations at war and had prevented their 
conflicts from spreading. It had been instrumental in setting in motion the 
process of decolonization and had acquired an ever-expanding role in the sphere 
of international co-operation for development. Finally, it had played a major 
role in bringing about current economic and political changes and had awru~ened 
nev aspirations. 

55. nevertheless, some of the fundamental objectives enshrined in the Charter 
remained unfulfilled. In spite of the Charter objective "to save succeeding 
generations from the scourge of war 11

, betvreen 1945 and 1975 there had been 119 
civil an<l international vrars involving the armed forces of 81 nations. The 
victims of those wars, which had killed more people and inflicted more damage than 
had the Second i'lorld \rJar, had been mostly the third world countries. The arms 
race, which posed by far the most potent threat to peace, continued. From 1970 
to 1978 vorld military expenditure had increased from $200 to $400 billion, and, 
in the same period exports of weapons to third •vorld countries had almost tripled, 
while, despite the stated purpose of the United Nations "to promote social 
progress and better standards of life 11

, more than 800 million people continued to 
live belmr the poverty line. 

56. Hhile the Charter could not be blamed for the international community's 
short-comings, frustrations and derogations from the ideals of the Charter, it 
vras none the less the duty of that community to analyse the changes that had 
taken place in the world since the adoption of the Charter and to see how far it 
was necessary to adapt it. It had become clear in the post-Charter period that, 
contrary to the initial assumption, the international community could not rely on 
the permanent members of the Security Council for the maintenance of peace. Many 
conflicts had broken out because of big-Power rivalry over spheres of influence. 
Yet there was no denying the fact that co-operation between the big Pmrers 
themselves and between them and the rest of the 1,;rorld community ·was essential for 
maintaining peace and friendly relations among peoples. In the context of the 
Charter review it vrould be necessary to see hovr the dependence of the United 
Nations system' on the major Pmvers could be reduced without forgoing their 
indispensable co-operation. One solution might be to rely increasingly on 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/33/SR. 28 
English 
Page 15 

(Hr. Ra,iu, India) 

regional arrangements and bodies for maintaining peace and promoting co-operation. 
In that connexion, it was regrettable that, in spite of numerous General Assembly 
resolutions on the decentralization of United Nations activities, little progress 
had been made in that direction. 

57. The system 1s excessive dependence on the major Powers derived also from the 
fact that the bulk of its financial resources -vras provided by those Pow·ers. 
Recent eA.rperience had shmm that withdravral of financial support by a major Power 
had threatened even the survival of the organization concerned. It would 
therefore be worth-while to examine seriously how the financing of the activities 
of the system could be modified so as to reduce to a minimum the possible adverse 
effects of the withdrawal of financial support by any of the major Povrers. It 
might perhaps be desirable to depend more and more on autonomous self-generating 
multilateral sources of financing and less on assessed contributions of Member 
States. 

58. The perception of the >;-mrld order >;vhich the Charter had sought to preserve 
and promote had also changed fundamentally since 1945. It had not been possible 
at that time to envisage remedies for structural anomalies and deficiencies in 
the ·world order which had only become evident in recent years. It was therefore 
necessary to examine how the Charter principles and provisions could be adjusted 
to the new reality. The question of an eventual revision of the Charter had been 
vridely discussed at the San Francisco Conference, and the text of the Charter 
itself contained provisions for its amendment. In fact, some of the provisions 
of the Charter had already been amended, in particular in respect of the 
membership of the Security Council and the Economic and Social Council. No one, 
therefore, could oppose the Charter revie\·T as such, since that would run counter 
to both the letter and the spirit of the Charter; it \Wuld not, hovrever, be correct 
to say that the Charter had remained entirely unresponsive to the changes in the 
vrorld, since it had been supplemented by other instruments such as covenants, 
declarations and definitions. Some of the recent activities of the United Nations 
system had an important bearing on the question of broaQening the horizons of the 
Charter, in particular the activities relating to the establishment of a new 
international economic order, decolonization, the struggle against racism and 
apartheid, safeguarding the environment, disarmament and the development of 
international law. 

59. During the course of the debate, it had been pointed out that certain 
provisions in the Charter had become obsolete. For example, many delegations 
vrished to see the provision relating to the admission of new Members liberalized 
or the purposes and principles of the United Nations amended to incorporate the 
idea of bringing about structural changes in the system of international relations. 
Moreover, it was felt that the provisions relating to economic co-operation should 
be strengthened. The democratization of the United Nations system with a view to 
ensuring its universal character should also be kept in view. Amendments to the 
Charter should be approached realistically, and it was vitally important that the 
Special Committee should conduct its work in a spirit of compromise and on the 
basis of consensus. 

I . .. 



A/C.6/33/SE.28 
English 
Page 16 

(~IT .. Raju, India) 

60. Turnine to the question of the peaceful settlement of disputes, his 
delegation supported the principle of a declaration being adopted by the General 
Assembly as a::1 initial step towards the possible preparation of a 1-rorld treaty. 
'G1e p;:ovisions of C"napter VI of the Charter played an important role in 
maint<: .. ining peace. Article 33 provided Member States with many options of 
procedures ~uaranteeing the ~eaceful settlement of disputes. It seemed that the 
best option 1-;as that of di:cect negotiation between the parties concerned. In 
that connexion, the Security Council should intervene much earlier than was 
presently the case and should make use more often of regional arrangements for 
stuctJ-, consultations ~~d cood offices as the case might be. His delegation 
favoured France's id.ea for a manual describing all means by which disputes could 
be settled peacefully. He hoped that at its next session the Special Committee 
1wuld be able to make specific rc=conrrnendations on that. important matter. 

61. The Special Committee had also made a number of interesting suggestions on 
the question of the rationalization of procedures. It was to be hoped that it 
1.10uld concentrate on those proposals that P.ppeared to be generally acceptable and 
that it would malce ne-vr concrete suggestions in the near future. The proposal to 
shorten the agenda of the General Assembly and to rationalize the allocation of 
its various items deserved particular attention. The growing practice of 
arbitrarily selecting certain items for discussion in the plenary meetings should 
be avoided. It 1-rould also be desirable to review· the format and content of 
united 1·Tations documentation. Regarding recruitment of staff, the principles set 
forth in Article 101 ~ paragraph 3 ~ of the Charter should be adhered to, bearing 
in mind~ however, that the principle of equitable geographical distribution did 
not conflict 1rith those principles. 

62. His delegation 1vas in favour of renew·ing the Special Committee's mandate. 

63. Hr. FARES (Democratic Yemen) said that his delegation had carefully studied 
the 51 proposals in the Special Committee's report and had found certain of them 
useful and objective. The Special Committee should concentrate on the proposals 
that had a1vakened the greatest interest and upon which, therefore, a consensus 
could most easily be reached. The Committee would then be better able to fulf~l 
its mandate, namely, to strengthen the role of the Unite<l Nations and enhance 1ts 
effectiveness. That objective could be attained only through strict respect for 
the principles and provisions of the Charter and through the optimal utilization 
of the available means, in particular concerning the fundamental objective of the 
United nations - the maintenance of peace and security. The Charter had 1v-ithstood 
the test of time; in its present form, it should facilitate the achievement of 
that objective and llaS not to be blamed for the imperfections of the United 
nations. That situation came about because Member States respected neither its 
purposes, its principles nor its resolutions. '1ne effective implemen~ation of 
those resolutions -vras a crucial issue that deserved particular attent1on. But • 
although the Charter had proved that it \laS still valid in a world of rapid 
evolution~ that did not mean that it could not be amended in any w~Y· The. Charter 
s~ould be developed in order to better serve the interests of the 1nternat1onal 
community; but it 1vas just as important in that regard that Member States should 
all shovr a sincere political 1trill and strictly respect its principles and 

provisions. 
I ... 



A/C.6/33/SR.28 
English 
Page 17 

64. Mr. DUCHENE (Belgium) said that the views of his cormtry, which was a member 
of the Special Committee 9 -vrere vrell knmm. They had been expressed on several 
occasions by his delegation during previous sessions of the Special Co~Ldttee, as 
uell as in the -vrritten comments submitted by Belgium on the substance of the 
question whose consideration had been allocated to that body. 

65. His delegation nevertheless wished to talce the floor for three reasons. First, 
the failure of a member of the Special Committee to rrake a statement might be 
interpreted as a hidden desire to remain aloof from that body's work, or even to 
disassociate himself from it. His delegation believed that there were aspects of 
the Committee's mandate that merited thorough consideration. There were means of 
enhancing the United Nations effectiveness, and delegations should concentrate on 
them. 

66. Secondly, the Special Committee's report prompted several comments. First, 
Mr. Broms was to be congratulated for having successfully carried out what had 
proved to be a difficult task. Regarding the results of the vrork done in the 
informal consultations, his delegation concurred with the criticisms already 
voiced by other delegations. The list of 51 propositions seemed of little value, 
and his delegation i·relcomed the United States working paper (A/AC.l82/HG/21), 
vhich had the merit of being more systematically formulated and of taking accormt 
of the links bet1-reen the subjects dealt with. 

67. Finally, concerning the comments that had been directed at certain members of 
the Special Committee - comments that had sometimes gone so far as to cast doubt 
upon the good faith of the so-called 11big four 1

' - it should be recalled that those 
four countries vrere far from being the only ones, since the Committee's inception, 
to voice doubts regarding the appropriateness of certain aspects of its mandate. 
Although his delegation had often expressed reservations in the Special Committee, 
it had never ceased to affirm its desire to continue working in it. It therefore 
supported the renewal of the Special Cormnittee's mandate and intended to continue 
its efforts to arrive at solutions based on consensus in a calm and candid 
atmosphere. 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 




